

Using the Integrated Virtualization Manager with Linux on POWER

(Virtual I/O Server Version 1.3)

.

Clifford Spinac Calvin Sze Joseph Pu IBM Systems ISV Solutions Enablement July 2007



Table of contents

| Abstract | 3 |
|--|----|
| Introduction | 3 |
| IVM overview | 4 |
| POWER5 processor-based system configurations | 4 |
| IVM components | 4 |
| IVM limitations | 6 |
| Before you begin | 6 |
| Setting up and configuring an IVM-managed system | 8 |
| Initializing the service processor | 8 |
| Installing the Virtual I/O Server | 13 |
| Using IVM to create a Linux partition | 16 |
| Creating a default storage pool and space for a virtual disk | 16 |
| Creating the Linux partition | 24 |
| Installing Linux into the partition | 28 |
| Modifying partition resources | 31 |
| Summary | 37 |
| Appendix 1: Comparison of IVM and HMC | 38 |
| Appendix B: Resources | 39 |
| About the authors | 39 |
| Trademarks and special notices | 40 |



Abstract

This white paper presents an overview of the functionality of the IBM Integrated Virtualization Manager (IVM), a new component of the Virtual I/O Server, which is included with the IBM Advanced Power Virtualization (APV) feature. With IVM, you can now manage partitions on an IBM POWER5 processor-based server without the Hardware Management Console (HMC). This white paper also lists some of the differences between the IVM and the HMC, and illustrates how to use IVM to create and manage Linux on POWER partitions.

Introduction

With IBM® POWER5[™] and IBM POWER5+[™] processor-based systems and the IBM Advanced POWER[™] Virtualization (APV) feature, there are many opportunities for consolidation and simplification of the IT environment. It is possible to create multiple solutions that benefit from implementing virtualization. Some examples of solutions that improve by using virtualization are: server consolidation, rapid deployment, application development and testing, and support for multiple operating-system environments.

The Advanced POWER Virtualization hardware feature includes software, firmware and hardware enablement that, together, provide support for logical partitioning (LPAR), virtual LAN and virtual I/O. In addition, systems that feature the POWER5 processor can use IBM Micro-Partitioning[™] technology, which provides the capability to configure up to 10 LPARs per processor.

A key component of APV is the Virtual I/O Server (VIOS), which provides sharing of physical resources between partitions — including virtual SCSI and virtual networking. This allows more efficient utilization of physical resources because they can be shared between partitions to facilitate server consolidation.

To exploit the capabilities of APV, a system-management interface is required. This function is often provided by the Hardware Management Console (HMC), which is a dedicated workstation that runs integrated system-management software. In some system installations, the HMC might not be necessary; or for other businesses, might not be a cost-effective solution.

The Integrated Virtualization Manager (IVM) is a browser-based management interface that you can use to manage a single IBM System p[™] server. You can use it to create LPARs, manage the virtual storage and virtual Ethernet, and view service information that relates to the system. IVM provides the required systemmanagement capabilities to small and midsized businesses, as well as larger businesses with distributed environments.

IVM is available as part of VIOS, starting with Version 1.2. VIOS firmware level GA6 (SF235) or later supports the functionality of IVM. When you install VIOS on a supported system that does not have an HMC present or previously installed, IVM is automatically enabled on that system. Therefore, IVM provides a simplified, cost-effective management solution for partitioning and virtualization.

This white paper illustrates how to set up and use IVM to create and work with Linux® partitions.



IVM overview

This section of the white paper provides an overview of IVM on POWER5 processor-based systems.

POWER5 processor-based system configurations

POWER5 processor-based systems are manufactured in the factory default, or unmanaged configuration. In this configuration, the system has a single predefined partition. This configuration allows you to use the system as a stand-alone server, with all of the resources allocated to the single partition.

After activating the virtualization feature, you can attach the HMC to the system's service processor to convert the unmanaged system into an HMC-managed system. An HMC-managed system can exploit virtualization and allow you to divide the system's resources across multiple LPARs.

When the system does not have an HMC, you can create an IVM-managed system that can still use the system's virtualization and LPAR capabilities. To convert the unmanaged configuration into an IVM-managed system, you install the VIOS in the first partition on the unmanaged system. This VIOS partition owns all the physical I/O resources of the system. You can then create client partitions by using the IVM interface. All the client partition I/O is virtualized through the VIOS.

IVM components

System administrators can work with LPAR configurations through the IVM Web browser or command-line interface. These interfaces help in managing and configuring the client partitions and the virtual I/O resources. The browser-based interface provides an intuitive, easy-to-use method of connecting to the VIOS partition of the managed system through standard network access. The command-line interface uses an interactive console, or a Telnet session, with the VIOS partition. Because IVM is not connected to the service processor; it uses a Virtual Management Channel (VMC) to communicate with the POWER5 Hypervisor.





Figure 1 depicts the VIOS and IVM components, along with their administration interfaces.

Figure 1. VIOS and IVM components

Partitions created in an IVM-managed system can use the following virtualization support:

- o Shared-processor partitions or dedicated-processor partitions
- Micro-Partitioning support in shared-processor partitions, which provides shared-processor pool usage for capped and uncapped partitions
- Based on an uncapped weight, uncapped partitions can use idle processing units from a shared-processor pool
- o Virtual Ethernet support, allowing LPARs to share a physical Ethernet adapter
- Virtual networks with bridges between the virtual networks and the physical Ethernet adapters
- o Virtual SCSI support, allowing LPARs to share a physical SCSI adapter
- Assignment of physical disks, partial disks or external logical-unit numbers (LUNs) to client partitions
- o Virtual-optical support, allowing LPARs to share a CD or DVD drive
- o Virtual-console support, with virtual-terminal console access from the VIOS partition



IVM limitations

IVM provides a subset of the HMC functionality. You should carefully consider business needs when deciding whether to deploy IVM or an HMC. Using IVM includes some of the following limitations:

- o Full dynamic-LPAR support is only available for the VIOS partition.
- The VIOS partition owns all the physical I/O.
- There is no support for redundant or multiple VIOS partitions.
- o Client partitions can have a maximum of two virtual Ethernet adapters,
- o Client partitions can have only one virtual SCSI adapter.
- There is no provision for call-home service support.

As seen by some of these limitations, there are instances where an HMC-managed system might be required or more desirable. Some examples of these instances include systems that need complex LPARs, client partitions with dynamic-LPAR support or dedicated physical-I/O adapters, redundant VIOS support and complete HMC-based service support.

Appendix A provides a table that compares IVM with HMC.

Before you begin

This white paper assumes that you have a working knowledge of the Linux operating system and POWER5 processor-based server hardware, as well as partitioning and virtualization concepts. To set up and use IVM to create a Linux solution requires the following system and software components:

- 1. One of the following POWER5 processor-based servers:
 - o IBM System p5[™] 505, 520 or 550 model
 - o IBM eServer™ p5 510, 520 or 550 model
 - System microcode version SF235_160, or later Notes:
 - a. You can download the microcode update-files CD-ROM image from http://techsupport.services.ibm.com/server/mdownload/cdimage.html
 - b. If a diagnostic CD is needed to install the new firmware level, you can download the stand-alone diagnostics CD-ROM image from http://techsupport.services.ibm.com/server/mdownload/diags



- 2. The virtualization feature for the System p server (see Table 1):
 - The Advanced POWER Virtualization feature

| System | МТМ | Virtualization feature number |
|---|----------|-------------------------------|
| System p5 505 Express | 9115-505 | 7432 |
| eServer p5 510 and 510 Express | 9110-510 | 7432 |
| eServer p5 520 and 520 Express | 9111-520 | 7940 |
| System p5 520 Express | 9131-52A | 7940 |
| eServer p5 550 and 550 Express | 9113-550 | 7941 |
| System p5 550 Express System p5 550Q Express | 9133-55A | 7941 |

Table 1. Virtualization feature numbers per system

- 3. Virtual I/O Server Version 1.2 or later installation CD
- 4. One of the following supported Linux distributions:
 - o SUSE Linux Enterprise Server 9 for POWER (SLES9)
 - Red Hat Enterprise Linux AS 3 for POWER (RHEL3), Update 2 or later Note: RHEL3 is not supported on System p5 Express servers.
 - Red Hat Enterprise Linux AS 4 for POWER (RHEL4)
- 5. A PC with a serial-terminal application (for example, Linux Minicom or Microsoft® Windows® HyperTerminal) or a serial terminal
- 6. A 9-pin serial-crossover connection (null-modem) cable
- 7. One of the following network-connected Web browser:
 - o Netscape 7.1, or later
 - o Microsoft Internet Explorer 6.0, or later
 - o Mozilla 1.7.x
 - o Firefox 1.0, or later



Setting up and configuring an IVM-managed system

The setup and configuration of an IVM-managed system requires a serial-terminal application (for example, Minicom on Linux or HyperTerminal on Windows) running on a PC that is plugged into the system's serial port **1** by a 9-pin serial-crossover or null-modem cable. In addition, you need to connect the flexible-service processor (FSP) Link HMC1 Ethernet connection to your network. With the following steps, you can initialize the FSP and install the VIOS.

Note: The following setup steps assume that the system is in the manufacturer's default configuration or in an unmanaged system state. If necessary, you can reset the system to the manufacturer's default configuration by using the service processor's System Service Aids menu, Factory Configuration option.

Initializing the service processor

To initialize the service processor, perform the following steps:

- 1. Set the terminal application's connection to **19200** bits per second, **8** data bits, no parity and **1** stop bit.
- 2. Power on the system and press a key on the terminal to receive the service-processor prompt.
- Log in with the user ID admin and the default password admin. When prompted to change users' passwords, change the admin password.
- From Network Services -> Network Configuration -> Configure interface Eth0, set the static mode, IP address and subnet mask. Optionally, you can also set other interface settings (see Figure 2).

```
MAC address: 00:02:55:2F:FC:04
Type of IP address: Static

    Host name (Currently: OP710)
    Domain name (Currently: company.com)
    IP address (Currently: 10.10.10.109)
    Subnet mask (Currently: 255.255.255.0)
    Default gateway (Currently: 10.10.10.10)
    IP address of first DNS server
    IP address of second DNS server
    Save settings
98. Return to previous menu
99. Log out
```

S1>

Figure 2. Configuring the interface

- 5. Select **Save settings** and confirm the changes to reset the service processor.
- Open a Web browser and connect to the IP address that is set on the FSP by using the HTTPS protocol, for example, https://10.10.10.109. The Advanced Systems Management interface (ASMI) is then displayed.

You can now access the ASMI from either the serial console or the Web interface. The following steps illustrate how to set the date and time, and how to enable system virtualization through the Web ASMI. You can perform the same tasks using the FSP menu through the serial console. It is



recommended that you use the Web interface to access the ASMI to perform FSP-related tasks for the following reasons:

- To access the FSP menus through the serial console, the system must be in power-off state while the FSP is powered on.
- To use the FSP menus, you must be physically near the system because of the requirement for a connection to a PC through a serial-connection (null-modem) cable.
- It is more convenient to use the Web interface to access the ASMI, and to use the serial console to bring up the System-Management Services (SMS) menus to install the VIOS.
- 7. Log in to the ASMI with user ID *admin* and the newly changed password, as shown in Figure 3.



Figure 3. ASMI login page



8. In the navigation area, select **System Configuration** -> **Time Of Day**. Enter the date and time based on the UTC time. Click **Save Settings** (see Figure 4).

Note: You can find the current UTC time at http://tycho.usno.navy.mil/cgi-bin/timer.pl.



Figure 4. Setting the system configuration - time of day





9. Select Power/Restart Control -> Power On/Off System. In the Boot to system server firmware pull-down menu, select Standby, and click Save settings and power on (see Figure 5).



Figure 5. Powering on to boot system-server firmware in standby mode



 Wait several minutes for the system to power on. If you redisplay the Power On/Off System page, the current system-server firmware state must be at standby. Select **On Demand Utilities** -> **CoD Activation**. Enter your CoD activation code for the Advanced Power Virtualization feature and click **Continue** (see Figure 6).



Figure 6. Entering the CoD activation code



Installing the Virtual I/O Server

Now that you have set up the FSP, you can install and configure VIOS. Again, this requires the use of the serial-terminal application on the PC that is connected to the system's serial port:

- 1. Insert the VIOS Version 1.2 disk into the system CD/DVD drive.
- 2. From the ASMI Web interface, select Power/Restart Control -> Power On/Off System.
- 3. Select Running for Boot to system server firmware, and click Save settings and power on.
- 4. Wait for the prompt on the serial terminal and then press 0 to select the active console.
- 5. Wait for the boot screen to appear on the serial console. Press 1 after the word *Keyboard* is displayed, to go to the SMS (System Management Services) menu (see Figure 7).

1 = SMS Menu 5 = Default Boot List 8 = Open Firmware Prompt 6 = Stored Boot List Memory Keyboard Network SCSI Speaker

Figure 7. Selecting 1 to go to the SMS menu

- 6. Enter the *admin* user account's password when prompted for it.
- After the SMS main menu is displayed, select the following SMS options: Select Boot Options -> Select Install/Boot Device -> List all Devices -> IDE CD-ROM (use the SCSI CD-ROM if the drive is a SCSI CD or DVD drive).
- 8. Select Normal Mode Boot and then select Yes to exit SMS.



9. The system begins to boot the VIOS disk image. After several minutes (possibly a longer time on some systems with many I/O devices), The Welcome to the Virtual I/O Server boot-image information is displayed. When asked to define the system console, enter the number that is displayed as directed, the number 2 in this example (see Figure 8).

```
******* Please define the System Console. ******
Type a 2 and press Enter to use this terminal as the
system console.
Pour definir ce terminal comme console systeme, appuyez
sur 2 puis sur Entree.
Taste 2 und anschliessend die Eingabetaste druecken, um
diese Datenstation als Systemkonsole zu verwenden.
Premere il tasto 2 ed Invio per usare questo terminal
come console.
Escriba 2 y pulse Intro para utilizar esta terminal como
consola del sistema.
Escriviu 1 2 i premeu Intro per utilitzar aquest
terminal com a consola del sistema.
Digite um 2 e pressione Enter para utilizar este terminal
como console do sistema.
```

Figure 8. Defining the system console

- 10. Enter 1 to select *English* during the installation.
- 11. When asked for the installation preferences, enter 1 to select Start Install Now with Default Settings.
- 12. On the System Installation Summary screen, ensure that hdisk0 is the only disk selected and enter1 to continue with the installation. The installation progress is displayed. (See Figure 9.)



Figure 9. Screen that shows the progress of the VIOS installation

- 13. After the installation has been completed, the system reboots. Log in as user *padmin* with the default password *padmin*. When prompted, change the password.
- 14. Enter the license -view command to read the VIOS license agreement. Then, enter the license -accept command to accept the license.
- 15. Create the VIOS virtual Ethernet interfaces with the mkgencfg -o init command.



16. Enter lsdev | grep ent to find the Ethernet interfaces to use for the server's external connections to the network. The two interfaces that are marked with 2-Port 10/100/1000 Base-TX PCI-X Adapter (ent0 and ent1) are the onboard Ethernet adapters. (See Figure 10.)

| \$ lsdev grep ent | |
|--------------------|---|
| ent0 Available | 2-Port 10/100/1000 Base-TX PCI-X Adapter (1410890 |
| entl Available | 2-Port 10/100/1000 Base-TX PCI-X Adapter (1410890 |
| ent2 Available | Gigabit Ethernet-SX PCI-X Adapter (14106802) |
| ent3 Available | Gigabit Ethernet-SX PCI-X Adapter (14106802) |
| ent4 Available | Virtual I/O Ethernet Adapter (l-lan) |
| ent5 Available | Virtual I/O Ethernet Adapter (l-lan) |
| ent6 Available | Virtual I/O Ethernet Adapter (l-lan) |
| ent7 Available | Virtual I/O Ethernet Adapter (l-lan) |
| ibmvmc0 Available | Virtual Management Channel |
| Ś | |

Figure 10. Listing of the available Ethernet interfaces

17. Enter the *mktcpip* command to configure the network interfaces for the Ethernet adapters that the VIOS will use. In this example, the network cable plugs into the ent0 adapter and connects to the 10.10.10.0 network. The en0 interface, which is the corresponding VIOS network interface for the physical Ethernet device ent0, is configured with the IP address 10.10.10.10. (See Figure 11.)

Figure 11. Using the mktcpip command to configure network interfaces

18. Optionally, you can do further customization of the VIOS at this point. In addition, the system is now ready for use as an IVM-managed system through the IVM Web interface.



Using IVM to create a Linux partition

Now that you have installed and configured VIOS, you can use IVM to manage the system and its resources. When creating a partition, you must first allocate storage for the partition. This storage becomes a virtual disk for a Linux partition. You can then use a wizard to create a partition. Finally, you can install a Linux distribution into that partition from either a network or a CD.

Creating a default storage pool and space for a virtual disk

This section demonstrates an installation that is driven from a CD.

 Open a Web browser that has network access to the Ethernet adapter that you configured for the VIOS and point it to the IP address for the VIOS (in this example, the IP address is http://10.10.10.110). Log in to IVM using the *padmin* user ID and the password that you created for padmin (see Figure 12).

| Elle Edit View Go Bookmarks Tools Window Help | |
|---|--|
| Integrated Virtualization Manager Welcome, please enter your information. • User ID: padmin • Password: • Password: • The system will log you out automatically and ask you to log in again. This product includes Eclipse technology. (http://www.eclipse.org) • Required field | |
| Integrated Virtualization Manager Welcome, please enter your information. User ID: padmin Password: ******** Please note: After some time of inactivity, the system will log you out automatically and ask you to log in again. This product includes Eclipse technology. (http://www.eclipse.org) *Required field | |
| Welcome, please enter your information. *User ID: padmin *Password: *Password: Iog in Please note: After some time of inactivity, the system will log you out automatically and ask you to log in again. This product includes Eclipse technology. (http://www.eclipse.org) *Required field | |
| * User ID: padmin * Password: ******** Log in Please note: After some time of inactivity, the system will log you out automatically and ask you to log in again. This product includes Eclipse technology. (http://www.eclipse.org) *Required field | |
| | |
| Done | |
| | |



2. The IVM View/Modify Partitions page is displayed. Examine the System Overview information and the Partition Details section of this page. Look carefully to see that the only partition currently displayed is the VIOS partition, with a default partition name that is based on the system's serial number (see Figure 13).



Figure 13. Viewing the IVM View/Modify Partitions page



3. When creating a partition, you must allocate storage for the partition. This storage comes from a shared storage pool, which the VIOS manages. The default storage pool is set as rootvg. When the VIOS is installed, rootvg is set to hdisk0, which is the same disk that contains the VIOS. On systems with several disks, it is a good practice to create a new storage pool and define it as the default storage pool. Refer to Appendix B for more information on the use of the storage pool and advanced storage configurations.

To create a storage pool with other drives on the system, in the navigation area of the Virtual Storage Management menu, click **Create Virtual Storage**. Then, click **Create Storage Pool** (see Figure 14).

| Contegrated virtualization manager - Isviabu41 - | windows internet explorer | | | |
|---|--|---|--|------------------------|
| | | | Google | <u>- م</u> |
| Google G- 🗸 🔽 😡 | 👪 👻 👷 Bookmarks 🕶 🖓 Check 👻 🐴 | utoLink 👻 🔚 AutoFill 🍺 Send to 🗸 🏼 🖉 | | Settings - |
| 🕴 🔊 🔹 Search web 🔎 🖛 🔶 👻 🔺 😫 | INX +2.26 🛛 📢 🔹 😔 Onfolio 🧎 🕶 👳 | 🖁 Maps 🔹 🤺 Favorites 🔹 😻 PC Health | 🎇 Spaces 🔹 🖃 🔹 🖓 🖌 🔂 Allowed 🔹 🛅 F | Form Fill 🔹 🔝 🔹 » |
| | | | | |
| mywebsearch Search | n 🔹 🎤 Highlight 💮 92° 🛛 Forecast 🔼 90° | /60° | | |
| 🔆 🍄 😳 👻 🌈 Integrated Virtualization 🗙 🚥 pSe | eries and AIX Information | | 🗄 • 🗟 • 🖶 • 🖻 | Page + 💮 Tools + » |
| Integrated Virtualization Manager | | | | IBM. |
| Welcome padmin | | | Edit my pr | ofile Help Log out |
| Partition Management | Create Virtual Storage | | | 2 |
| <u>View/Modify Partitions</u> <u>Create Partitions</u> <u>View/Modify System Properties</u> | New virtual disks can be created in any ex Disk to proceed. | isting storage pool. You can extend the v | virtual disk size once you create a virtual disk. Sele | sct Create Virtual |
| Virtual Ethernet Management | Create Virtual Disk | | | |
| <u>View/Modify Virtual Ethernet</u> | Select Create Storage Pool to group availa | ble physical volumes into a new storage | pool. | |
| Virtual Storage Management | | | | |
| <u>View/Modify Virtual Storage</u> <u>Create Virtual Storage</u> | Create Storage Pool | | | |
| IVM Management | | | | |
| <u>View/Modify User Accounts</u> <u>Create User Accounts</u> View/Modify TCP/IP Settings | | | | |
| Service Management | | | | |
| Service Focal Point Service Focal Point Create Serviceable Events Create Serviceable Event Chatace Durings Chatace Durings Updates Backur/Restore Application Loga Monitor Tasks Hardware Inventory | | | | |
| Done | | | 🌍 😜 Internet | 🔍 100% 🔹 💡 |

Figure 14. Creating a storage pool with other drives on the system



4. From the Create Storage Pool window, enter a storage-pool name (for example, LinuxPoolvg). Select hdisk5 and hdisk6 (as an example). Click OK to create the pool (see Figure 15).

| C | 🌈 Create Storage Pool - Windows Internet Explorer 🛛 🔲 🗖 🔀 | | | | | | | |
|------------------|---|--|-------------------------------|-----------------------------------|--------------|--|--|--|
| 6 | http://9.3.245.39/sm_create_starter.faces | | | | | | | |
| | Create | Storage Pool | | | ? | | | |
| | To creat physical | e a storage pool, o volumes to assign | enter the st n to this sto | orage pool name and rage pool. | select the | | | |
| | * Stora | ge pool name: Lir | nuxPoolvg | | | | | |
| | Select | Physical Volume | Size | Physical Location | on Code | | | |
| | ~ | hdisk5 | 33.9 GB | U787B.001.DNW78D2 L0 | 2-P1-T15-L4- | | | |
| | ~ | hdisk6 | 33.9 GB | U787B.001.DNW78D2 L0 | 2-P1-T15-L5- | | | |
| | | hdisk7 | 68.37 GB | U787B.001.DNW78D2 L0 | 2-P1-T15-L8- | | | |
| * Required field | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | |
| | OK Can | icel | | | | | | |
| Do | ne | | 🔜 🥶 I | Internet | 🔍 100% 👻 🔡 | | | |

Figure 15. Entering a storage-pool name and selecting disk drives



- From the Virtual Storage Management menu, click View/Modify Virtual Storage. Then, on the Storage Pools tab, select LinuxPoolvg. At the bottom of the page, click the Assign as default storage pool task (see Figure 16).
- 6. Click **OK** to confirm that you want to assign as this storage pool as the default storage pool.

| C Integrated virtualization Manager - Isviab041 - V | windows internet Exp | lorer | | |
|---|---------------------------|---|-----------------------------------|---|
| • E http://9.3.245.39/main.faces | | | v 4) | Google |
| Google G- | 🚰 👻 🏡 Bookmarks | - ABC Check - 🔨 AutoLink - 🔚 AutoFill 🍙 Send to- | <i>A</i> | Settings - |
| 👔 🔹 Search web 🔎 🖛 👘 👻 🏟 🔹 🛦 🕸 | COMPX +4.44 🛛 📢 👻 🧕 |) Onfolio 💫 🖼 🕶 🚀 Maps 👻 🔆 Favorites 👻 🌒 PC | CHealth 🔉 Spaces 🔹 🖃 💌 🖁 | 🖁 🔹 🛜 Allowed 🔹 🔚 Form Fill 🔹 👋 |
| • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • | | | | |
| mywebsearch Search | h 🔹 🔟 Highlight 🕕 ! | 92° Forecast 🔼 90°/60° | | |
| 😭 🍄 🔡 🗸 🎯 Integrated Virtualization 🗙 🎫 pSe | eries and AIX Information | | 1 | 🕯 🔹 🔝 🔹 🖶 🔹 Page 🔹 🎯 T <u>o</u> ols 🔹 🍅 |
| Integrated Virtualization Manager | | | | IBM. |
| Welcome padmin | | | | Edit my profile Help Log out |
| Partition Management | View/Modify Virtua | I Storage | N | 2. |
| <u>View/Modify Partitions</u> <u>Create Partitions</u> | Virtual Disks St | orage Pools Physical Volumes Optical Devices | | |
| <u>View/Modity System Properties</u> | To perform an actio | n on a storage pool, first select the storage pool or stora | age pools, and then select the ta | sk. |
| Virtual Ethernet Management | | | | |
| Virtual Storage Management | Select | Name ^ | Total Size | Available Size |
| View/Modify Virtual Storage | | rootva | 33.88 GB | 16.88 GB |
| <u>Create Virtual Storage</u> | | storage pool | 67.62 GB | 37.59 GB |
| IVM Management | | storage 24 | 102.06 GB | 82.06 GB |
| <u>View/Modity User Accounts</u> <u>Create User Accounts</u> | | LinuxPoolvg (Default) | 67.62 GB | 67.62 GB |
| <u>View/Modity TCP/IP Settings</u> Service Management | | | | |
| Service Focal Point Manace Serviceable Events Service Utilities Create Serviceable Event Collarge Dinformation Updates Backun/Restore Application Loos Monitor Tasks Hardware Inventory | | | | |
| | Tasks | | | |
| | Properties Extend | Reduce Assign as default storage pool | | |
| | | | | 😜 Internet 🔍 100% 👻 🧋 |

Figure 16. Assigning a default storage pool





7. From the Virtual Storage Management menu, click **Create Virtual Storage**. Then, click **Create Virtual Disk** (see Figure 17).

| Contragrated virtualization Manager - Isviabu41 - | windows internet Explorer | |
|--|---|--|
| C | | Google |
| Google 🕞 🗸 🔽 🔽 🐨 🖉 🏈 😜 | 👸 👻 🔓 Bookmarks 🗸 🎒 Check 👻 🔦 AutoLink 👻 📔 AutoFill 🅃 Send to 🕶 🖉 | Settings- |
| 👔 👻 Search web 🔎 🕌 🔶 🛅 👻 💮 👻 🛦 s | \$INX +3.39 📢 🔹 🧐 Onfolio 🍓 🔹 🛃 Maps 🔹 🚖 Favorites 🔹 🕐 PC Health | 🎉 Spaces 🔹 🖃 🔹 🦀 👻 🕢 Allowed 🔹 🔚 Form Fill 🔹 🔂 🔹 🎇 |
| mywebsearch Search | h 🔻 🎤 Highlight 💮 68° 🛛 Forecast 🌄 82°/70° | |
| 😪 🎄 🔛 🗸 🍘 Integrated Virtualization 🗴 💷 pt | eries and AIX Information | 💁 • 🔊 - 🖶 • 🗗 Bage • 🎯 Tgols • 🎽 |
| Integrated Virtualization Manager | | IBM. |
| Welcome padmin | | Edit my profile Help Log out |
| Partition Management | Create Virtual Storage | 2 |
| <u>View/Modify Partitions</u> <u>Create Partitions</u> <u>View/Modify System Properties</u> | New virtual disks can be created in any existing storage pool. You can extend the v Disk to proceed. | irtual disk size once you create a virtual disk. Select Create Virtual |
| Virtual Ethernet Management | Create Virtual Disk | |
| <u>View/Modify Virtual Ethernet</u> | Select Create Storage Pool to group available physical volumes into a new storage | pool. |
| Virtual Storage Management | | |
| <u>View/Modify Virtual Storage</u> <u>Create Virtual Storage</u> | Create Storage Pool | |
| IVM Management | | |
| <u>View/Modify User Accounts</u> <u>Create User Accounts</u> <u>View/Modify TCP/IP Settings</u> | | |
| Service Management | | |
| Service Focal Point Manage Serviceable Events Service Utilities Create Serviceable Event Unitate Dumba Unitate Dumba Unitate Application Loos Monitor Tasks Hardware Inventory | | |
| | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | 😱 😜 Internet 🔍 100% 👻 . |
| | | |

Figure 17. Creating a virtual disk



 On the Create Virtual Disk window, enter the Virtual Disk Name Linux01LV, select the Storage Pool Name LinuxPoolvg, enter Logical Volume Size 20, and select GB. Then, click OK (see Figure 18).

| 🖉 Create Virtual Disk - Windows Internet Explorer | ĸ |
|--|---|
| http://9.3.245.39/sm_create_starter.faces | - |
| Create Virtual Disk ? | Ì |
| To create a virtual disk, enter the virtual disk name, size and select a storage pool. If you wish to increase the available size of a storage pool, use the Extend task in the Storage Pool tab in the Advanced View/Modify Devices page. | |
| * Virtual Disk Name Linux01LV | |
| * Storage Pool Name LinuxPoolvg (67.62 GB Available) | L |
| * Virtual Disk Size 20 GB 🗸 | L |
| *Required field | |
| | _ |
| OK Cancel | |
| Done 📑 🌚 Internet 🎕 100% 👻 | |

Figure 18. Defining the virtual disk





9. From the **View/Modify Virtual Storage** page, you can now see the newly created Linux01LV volume (see Figure 19)



Figure 19. Verifying the creation of the new virtual-disk volume





Creating the Linux partition

Now, you can create the Linux partition that will use the newly defined virtual disk.

1. You create the Linux partition by using the Create Partition wizard. From the Partition Management menu, click **Create Partitions**. Then, click **Start Wizard** (see Figure 20).



Figure 20. Starting the Create Partition wizard





- 2. The Create Partition Wizard window opens.
 - a. On the Create Partition: Name window, enter Partition name Linux01. Click Next.
 - b. On the Create Partition: Memory window, enter Assigned memory 768 and select MB. Click Next.
 - c. On the Create Partition: Processors window, select Assigned processors **2** and select **Shared**. Click **Next**.
 - d. On the Create Partition: Virtual Ethernet window, select Virtual Ethernet 1 for Adapter 1. Click Next.
 - e. On the Create Partition: Storage Type window, you can either create a virtual disk from the default storage pool, or assign an existing virtual disk (or a physical volume). To use the 20 GB Linux01LV logical volume that was created in this example, select **Assign existing virtual disks and physical volumes**. Click **Next**.
 - f. On the Create Partition: Storage window, select the available virtual disk Linux01LV. Click Next.
 - g. On the Create Partition: Optical window, to assign the DVD drive to this partition, select **cd0**. Click **Next**.
 - h. Review the Create Partition: Summary window. Then, click Finish (see Figure 21).

| Create Partition W | /izard - Windows Internet Explorer | | × |
|--|---|----------|-----|
| 🖉 http://9.3.245.39/ptn_ | _create.faces | | * |
| Create Partition: S | ummary Ste | p 8 of 8 | 🔷 |
| Name Memory Processors Virtual Ethernet Storage Type Storage Optical | Summary This is a summary of your partition settings. Select Finish to create the partition. To mak changes to the settings, select Back. You can modify the partition by using the partition properties task after you complete th wizard. | ke is | |
| ••• Summary | System name:Server-9133-55A-SN10BA11GPartition ID:4Partition name:Linux01Memory:768 MBProcessors:2 virtualVirtual Ethernets:1Storage capacity:20 GB (20480 MB)Storage devices:Linux01LVOptical devices:cd0 | | = |
| < Back Next > | Finish Cancel | He | slp |
| Done | 😱 🌏 Internet 🔍 | 100% | |

Figure 21. Completing the Create Partition wizard



3. The IVM View/Modify Partitions page now contains the Linux01 partition (see Figure 22).

| Commerciated virtualization manager - Isviabu41 | - windows | interne | et Explorer | | | | | | | |
|---|-------------------|---------------------|------------------------|----------------------|-----------------|------------|----------------|---------------------------|--------------------------|---|
| | | | | | | | | ✓ | Google | <u>ب</u> ع |
| Google G- Go of S O | s 🎼 🗸 🗌 | 😭 Book | marks 🗸 🛛 🍣 | Check 👻 🐔 Auti | oLink 👻 🐚 A | utoFill 🕞 | Send to 👻 🖉 | | | Settings • |
| 👰 🔹 Search web 🖉 🔄 🔶 💿 🔹 🍥 🔹 🛦 \$\$\$\$\$\$.46.64 🤘 🕫 🕲 Onfolio 🧞 🔄 😪 👷 Maps 🗸 🔆 Favorites 🔹 🖗 PC Health 🛞 Spaces 🔹 🖃 🖉 Allowed 🔹 🧮 Form Fill 🔹 🕥 🛀 | | | | | | | | | | |
| n 🔁 - | | | | | | | | | | |
| my web search Sear | rch 🔹 🔟 | Highlight | 68° F | orecast 🎑 82º/7 | 0° | | | | | |
| 🔆 🏟 😁 🖌 🌈 Integrated Virtualization 🗙 🚥 p | Series and A | IX Inform | ation | | | | | | 💁 • 🖻 • 🖶 • 🛙 | <u>} P</u> age ▼ () T <u>o</u> ols ▼ [≫] |
| Integrated Virtualization Manager | | | | | | | | | | IEM. |
| Welcome padmin Partition Management | 10 | a - 116 - 1 | 0 | | | | | | Edit my j | profile Help Log out |
| View/Modify Partitions | view/r | todity i | Partitions | | | | | | | |
| <u>Create Partitions</u> <u>View/Modify System Properties</u> | To perf Syster | orm an a n Overs | action on a pa view | artition, first sele | ct the partiti | on or part | itions, and th | en select the task. | | |
| Virtual Ethernet Management | Total s | ystem m | nemory: | | | 4 GB | Tota | processing units: | 4 | |
| <u>View/Modify Virtual Ethernet</u> | Memor | y availa | ble: | | | 144 MB | Proo | essing units available: | 3 | 1 (1 0%) |
| Virtual Storage Management View/Mediby Virtual Storage | System | attenti | on LED: | · · | | Inactive | Proc | essor poor utilization: | 0.04 (1.0%) | |
| <u>Create Virtual Storage</u> | Partiti | on Deta | ails | | | | | | | |
| IVM Management | | | 8 | | | | | | | |
| <u>View/Modify User Accounts</u> <u>Create User Accounts</u> | Select | | Name | State | Uptime | Memory | Processors | Entitled Processing Units | Utilized Processing Unit | ts Reference Code |
| <u>View/Modify TCP/IP Settings</u> | | 1 | <u>10-BA11G</u> | Running | 2.85 Days | 512 MB | 4 | 0.4 | 0.03 | |
| Service Focal Point | | 2 | aix3rootvq | Running | 1.75 Days | 1.2 GB | 2 | 0.2 | 0.00 | |
| Manage Serviceable Events Service Utilities | | 3 | aix2 | Running | 1.73 Days | 1.2 GB | 2 | 0.2 | 0.01 | |
| <u>Create Serviceable Event</u> Manage Dumps | | 4 | Linux01 | Not Activated | | 768 MB | 2 | 0.2 | | 0000000 |
| <u>Collect VPD Information</u> Updates | | | | | | | | | | |
| Backup/Restore Application Logs | | | | | | | | | | |
| <u>Monitor Tasks</u> Hardware Inventory | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | |
| | Tasks | | | | | | | | | |
| | Properti | es Ac | ctivate Shu | utdown Delete | <u>Create l</u> | based on | Operator p | anel service functions | Reference Codes | |
| | | | | | | | | | 👩 😜 Internet | 🔍 100% 👻 .: |

Figure 22. Verifying the creation of the new Linux01 partition





 A virtual Ethernet bridge is required to provide access from the partition's virtual Ethernet to the external network. From the Virtual Ethernet Management menu, click View/Modify Virtual Ethernet. Click the Virtual Ethernet Bridge tab. For Virtual Ethernet ID 1, select the Physical Adapter ent0. Click Apply (see Figure 23).

| C Integrated Virtualization Manager - ISVIADU41 - | windows internet Explorer | | | |
|---|---|---|---|---------------------------------------|
| | | | 🗸 🐓 🗶 Google | P - |
| <u>Elle Edit View Favorites Tools H</u> elp | | | | |
| Google G- ∞ 60 0 S | 👫 🛨 🔂 Bookmarks 🕶 🖓 | ' Check 🔻 🐔 AutoLink 👻 🔚 AutoFill 🔒 S | Send to 🗸 🥖 | Settings - |
| 🕴 💿 🔹 Search web 🔎 🛀 🔶 🛅 🔹 🌚 🔹 🛦 | COMPX +9.42 🛛 📢 🝷 😏 Onfol | io 🧞 🖼 🔹 🛃 Maps 🔹 🚖 Favorites | 🔹 💓 PC Health 🛛 😹 Spaces 💌 🖃 🔹 🖓 🐳 🛃 Allowed 💌 🗮 Fo | rm Fill 🔹 👋 |
| • 🔁 • | | | | |
| mywebsearch | h 🔄 🎤 Highlight 💮 68° 🛛 | Forecast 🥋 82°/70° | | |
| 📌 🍄 🔛 🗸 🍘 Integrated Virtualization 🗙 🏧 pS | eries and AIX Information | | 🟠 🔹 🗟 🐇 🔂 Eag | ≞ • (); T <u>o</u> ols • [≫] |
| Integrated Virtualization Manager | | | | IIM. |
| Welcome padmin | | | Edit my profile | Help Log out |
| Partition Management | View/Modify Virtual Ethe | ernet | | 2 |
| <u>View/Modify Partitions</u> <u>Create Partitions</u> | Virtual Ethernet Virtua | al Ethernet Bridge | | |
| <u>View/Modify System Properties</u> | A physical network bridge virtual Ethernet to access | provides a specific virtual Ethernet acces the external network via the physical Eth | ss to a physical Ethernet device, thereby allowing any partition on the nernet device. For a given virtual Ethernet, you may choose the physic | bridged cal adapter to |
| Virtual Ethernet Management | which to bridge. If a virtua | I Ethernet is not bridged, traffic on the v | irtual Ethernet is restricted to member partitions. | |
| Virtual Storage Management | Virtual Ethernet ID | Physical Adapter | | |
| View/Modify Virtual Storage | 1 ent | 0 (U787B.001.DNW78D2-P1-C4-T1) 💌 | | |
| <u>Create Virtual Storage</u> | 2 Nor | ne 🔽 | | |
| IVM Management | 3 Nor | ne 💌 | | |
| <u>View/Modify User Accounts</u> <u>Create User Accounts</u> <u>View/Modify TCP/IP Settings</u> | 4 Nor | ne 💌 | | |
| Service Management | | | - | I |
| Service Focal Point | Apply Reset | | | |
| <u>Manage Serviceable Events</u> Service Utilities | | | | |
| <u>Create Serviceable Event</u> Manage Dumps | | | | |
| <u>Collect VPD Information</u> Updates | | | | |
| Backup/Restore Application Logs | | | | |
| Monitor Tasks Hardware Investory | | | | |
| • <u>Hardware Inventory</u> | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| Done | | | 🧊 🤤 Internet | 🔍 100% 🔹 🚲 |

Figure 23. Creating a virtual Ethernet bridge



Installing Linux into the partition

Now, you can install the Linux distribution into the newly created Linux partition.

- 1. To install Linux, insert the Linux distribution installation CD in the CD/DVD drive.
- 2. Start a virtual console running in the VIOS.
- 3. Telnet to 10.10.10.110 and log in as *padmin*.
- 4. Enter the mkvt -id <partition ID> (partition ID for the Linux01 partition) command. The console then waits until the partition is activated (see Figure 24).

```
# telnet 10.10.10.110
Trying 10.10.10.110...
Connected to 10.10.10.110.
Escape character is '^]'.
telnet (IBMOP_VIO)
IBM Virtual I/O Server
login: padmin
padmin's Password:
Last login: Wed Sep 28 15:34:44 CDT 2005 on /dev/pts/0 from
10.10.10.20
$ mkvt -id 2
```

Figure 24. Starting a virtual terminal console



 You can now install Linux by activating the partition and using SMS from the virtual console. From IVM Partition Management menu's *View/Modify Partitions*, select the partition Linux01. Then click Activate (see Figure 25).



Figure 25. Activating the partition where you will install Linux

29



- 4. On the Activate Partitions page, click OK.
- 5. Switch back to the Telnet session with the virtual console. As the partition boots, press 0 to select this session as the console.
- 6. Wait for the boot screen to appear on the virtual console. Press 1 after the word *Keyboard* is displayed, to go to the SMS menu.
- 7. After the SMS main menu is displayed, select the following SMS options:

Select Boot Options -> Select Install/Boot Device -> List all Devices -> SCSI CD-ROM

Note: Even if the physical drive is an IDE DVD drive, the virtual optical driver reports it to SMS and Linux as a SCSI CD/DVD drive.

- 8. Select Normal Mode Boot, followed by Yes to exit SMS.
- 9. The system begins to boot the Linux installation CD. At this point, you can proceed with the standard Linux installation process.
- 10. After the installation has been completed, close the virtual console by entering ~. (tilde period).

Note: You can force a virtual console to close from the VIOS with the rmvt -id <partition id> command (for example, rmvt -id 2).

11. Now that Linux is running in the partition, the IVM View/Modify Partitions page displays a status of *Running* and will also display a *Linux ppc64* indicator as a reference code for the Linux01 partition.

Note: The Linux ppc64 indicator is dependent on the particular Linux distribution that is installed.





Modifying partition resources

You can now use IVM to modify the system resources that are available to the partitions. You can dynamically define the memory and the processing resources for the VIOS (partition ID 1) by selecting the Partition Management menu's View/Modify Partitions page, and then selecting **Properties**. Figure 26 is an example of using the Properties task to modify the processing units' assigned setting for the VIOS partition.

| -> Partition Properties: 10-0213A (1) - Mozilla | | | | | | | | | | | | |
|---|----------|----------|---------------------------------------|-------------------|------------|----------------------|-------|----------|-----------|--------|--------|----|
| ntegrated Virtualization Manager | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| artition Properties: 10-0213A (1) | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| General Memory Processing | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| viodify the : current and | pending | values m | ng the pending v iay take some tim | ialues. Tr ie. | ie changes | will be applied imme | diate | ly, howe | ver syncl | hroniz | ing ti | ne |
| Processing | Units | | | Virtual F | rocessors | | | | | | | |
| Property | Current | | Pending | Propert | y Current | Pending | _ | | | | | |
| Minimum | 0.1 | 0.1 | | Minimu | m 1 | 1 | | | | | | |
| Assigned | 0.2 | 0.3 | | Assigne | ed 2 | 2 | | | | | | |
| Maximum | 2 | 2.0 | | Maximu | im 2 | 2 | | | | | | |
| General | | | · | | | | | | | | | |
| cionorca | | | | | | | - | | | | | |
| | Property | | Current | Pending | | | | | | | | |
| Uncapped | weight | | Medium - 128 | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| K Consel | 1 | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Cancel | 9 | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | 10 H | F |

Figure 26. Using the IVM Properties task to modify the assigned processing units for the VIOS partition



You can also modify the resources for the Linux partition from the Partition Management menu's View/Modify Partitions - properties task. IVM also provides support for making dynamic LPAR changes to the partition's memory and processing capacity. However, to make virtual Ethernet changes on the Properties task, you must reboot the partition. Figure 27 is an example of changing the assigned processing units for a Linux partition.

| <mark>∭-⊢ Partit</mark> | g-∺ Partition Properties: Linux01 (2) - Mozilla | | | | | | | | | |
|----------------------------|---|---------------|--------------------|---------------------------|-----------------------|--------|----------------------------|-----------------|----|-----------------------|
| Integrated V | irtualiza | tion Manag | | | | | | | | |
| Partition Pro | artition Properties: Linux01 (2) | | | | | | | | | |
| General | Memor | y Proce | ssing Virtual | Ethernet | Stora | age | Optical Devices | | | |
| Modify the s Processing | ettings I Units | oy changing f | the pending values | . Pending v Virtual Pr | alues can ocessors | be edi | ted only when the partitio | n is powered of | f. | |
| Property | Current | | Pending | Property | Current | | Pending | | | |
| Minimum | 0.1 | 0.1 | | Minimum | 1 | 1 | | | | |
| Assigned | 0.3 | 0.4 | | Assigned | 2 | 2 | | | | |
| Maximum | 2 | 2.0 | | Maximum | 2 | 2 | | | | |
| General | | | | | | | | | | |
| | Property | | Current | | | | Pending | | | |
| Uncapped | weight | | Medium - 128 | L L | Medium - 1 | 128 | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | |
| OK Cancel | | | | | | | | | | |
| Done | | | | | | | | | - | - T - T |

Figure 27. Changing the assigned processing units for a Linux partition



To add more storage to a Linux partition, you must first create another virtual disk from the Virtual Storage Management menu's Create Virtual Storage page (see Figure 28).

| 🖉 Create Virtual Disk - Windows Internet Explorer | | | | | | | |
|--|------------|--|--|--|--|--|--|
| http://9.3.245.39/sm_create_starter.faces | ~ | | | | | | |
| Create Virtual Disk | ? | | | | | | |
| To create a virtual disk, enter the virtual disk name, size and select a storage pool. If you wish to increase the available size of a storage pool, use the Extend task in the Storage Pool tab in the Advanced View/Modify Devices page. | | | | | | | |
| * Virtual Disk Name Linux01disk | | | | | | | |
| * Storage Pool Name LinuxPoolvg (32.59 GB Available) | ~ | | | | | | |
| * Virtual Disk Size 5 GB 🗸 | | | | | | | |
| * Required field | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | |
| OK Cancel | | | | | | | |
| Done 👩 🚱 Internet | 🔍 100% 👻 🚲 | | | | | | |

Figure 28. Creating another virtual disk to add more storage to a Linux partition





You can use the View/Modify Partitions - properties task to assign storage to a Linux partition (see Figure 29). You can make these changes to the Storage and Optical Devices properties while the partition is active. However, the storage device must not be in use by another partition.

| C | 🖉 Partition Properties: Linux01 (4) - Windows Internet Explorer | | | | | | | | |
|-----|---|-------------|----------|-----|--------------------------------|-------|--|--|--|
| e | http://9.3.245.39/ptn_properties.faces | | | | | | | | |
| | Partition Properties: Linux01 (4) | | | | | | | | |
| | General Memory Processing Virtual Ethernet Storage Optical Devices | | | | | | | | |
| | The selected rows in the Virtual Disks and Physical Volumes tables represent the storage currently assigned to the partition. All unselected rows represent storage that has not been assigned. You may change the storage assignments for the partition by unselecting existing items or selecting items that are not currently assigned. You may also create or modify storage in the Storage Management view. Virtual Disks | | | | | | | | |
| | Select | Nar | ne ^ | | Storage Pool | Size | | | |
| | | Linux01disk | | Lin | uxPoolvg (Default) | 5 GB | | | |
| | | Linux01LV | | Lin | uxPoolvg (Default) | 20 GB | | | |
| | Physical Vol | umes | | | | | | | |
| | Select <u>Name</u> ^ | | Size | | Physical Location Code | | | | |
| | hdisk7 | | 68.37 GB | | U787B.001.DNW78D2-P1-T15-L8-L0 | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | |
| 0 | OK Cancel | | | | | | | | |
| Dor | | | | | | | | | |

Figure 29. Using the Partitions Properties task to assign storage to a Linux partition

With SLES9 SP2, you can rescan the SCSI bus with the bash shell script /bin/rescan-scsi-bus.sh to make the virtual disk available. However, with RHEL3 and RHEL4, you must reboot the partition for the operating system to pick up the new SCSI device.

In SLES9 SP2, you can use the lsscsi command to list all SCSI devices and to find the new SCSI device. In SLES or RHEL, you can use the fdisk -1 command to display information about the virtual disks. You can then partition the new virtual disk with the fdisk command. You can use the mkfs command to build a Linux file system, after which, you can then mount the disk partition by using the mount command.





An alternative method of adding more storage to a Linux partition is to extend a current virtual disk by using the Storage Management menu's View/Modify Virtual Storage option, and then selecting **Extend**. Figure 30 shows an example of using the Extend Virtual Disk task to increase the Linux01LV storage space by 10 GB. After extending the disk, you must reboot the Linux partition. After rebooting the Linux partition, the drive is larger because of the extended storage. You can then use the fdisk command to allocate the disk partitions.



Figure 30. Increasing the Linux01LV storage space by 10 GB





Figure 31. shows that, now, the Linux01 partition has two virtual disks assigned. One virtual disk has the size of 15 GB, instead of the original 5 GB.

| C | 🖉 Partition Properties: Linux01 (4) - Windows Internet Explorer | | | | | | | | |
|---|---|-------------|-----------------|-------|--------------------------------|----------|--------|--|--|
| e | http://9.3.245.39/ptn_properties.faces | | | | | | | | |
| F | Partition Properties: Linux01 (4) | | | | | | | | |
| | General Memory Processing Virtual Ethernet Storage Optical Devices | | | | | | | | |
| | The selected rows in the Virtual Disks and Physical Volumes tables represent the storage currently assigned to the partition. All unselected rows represent storage that has not been assigned. You may change the storage assignments for the partition by unselecting existing items or selecting items that are not currently assigned. You may also create or modify storage in the Storage Management view. Virtual Disks | | | | | | | | |
| | Select | Name | <u>a</u> ^ | | Storage Pool | Size | | | |
| | V | Linux01disk | | Linux | Poolvg (Default) | 15.03 GB | | | |
| | V | Linux01LV | | Linux | Poolvg (Default) | 20 GB | | | |
| | Physical Vol | umes | | | | | | | |
| | Select | Name ^ | Size | | Physical Location Code | | | | |
| | | hdisk7 | hdisk7 68.37 GB | | U787B.001.DNW78D2-P1-T15-L8-L0 | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | |
| Þ | OK Cancel | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | 👩 😜 Internet | 🔍 100 | % • .: | | |

Figure 31. Observing the newly assigned 15-GB size for Linux01disk





Summary

Logical partitioning (LPAR) can be an integral component of a successful server-consolidation strategy. With the Integrated Virtualization Manager (IVM), coupled with the performance of POWER5 processor-based systems, enterprises can leverage an easy-to-use, intuitive and cost-effective solution for creating partitions and working with virtualization resources. IVM provides a system-management solution that is especially suited for small and midsized businesses, as well as larger businesses with distributed environments. This white paper discussed some of the capabilities and limitations of IVM, as well as how it can be used to work with Linux partitions.

For more information about using IVM for system management, refer to Appendix B.





Appendix 1: Comparison of IVM and HMC

Table2 provides a comparative listing of the management features and functions for IVM and the HMC.

| | Integrated Virtualization Manager | Hardware Management Console | | | |
|---|--|--|--|--|--|
| Physical footprint | Integrated into the system | A desktop or rack-mounted appliance | | | |
| Installation | Installed with the VIOS (optical or network); preinstallation option available on some systems | Appliance is preinstalled; support for reinstallation through optical media or network | | | |
| Managed operating systems supported | IBM AIX® and Linux | IBM i5/OS™, Linux and AIX | | | |
| Virtual-console support | AIX and Linux virtual-console support | i5/OS, Linux and AIX virtual-console support | | | |
| User security | Password authentication with support for either full or read-only authorities | Password authentication with granular control of task-based authorities and object-based authorities | | | |
| Network security | -No integrated firewall support -Web-server SSL support | -Integrated firewall -Secure Sockets Layer (SSL) support for clients and for communications with managed systems | | | |
| Supported hardware | p5-505, p5-510, p5-51A, p5-520, p5-52A, p5-550, p5-55A, p5-561, | All POWER5 processor-based IBM System i [™] and IBM System pi [™] models | | | |
| Multiple-system support | One IVM per system | One HMC can manage multiple systems | | | |
| Redundancy | One IVM per system | Multiple HMCs can manage the same system for HMC redundancy | | | |
| Maximum number of partitions supported | Firmware maximum | Firmware maximum | | | |
| Uncapped-partition support | Yes | Yes | | | |
| Dynamic-resource movement (dynamic LPAR) | Yes (memory and processing units) | Yes - full support | | | |
| I/O support for AIX and Linux | Virtual optical, disk, Ethernet and console | Virtual and direct | | | |
| I/O support for i5/OS | None | Virtual and direct | | | |
| Maximum number of virtual LANs | four | 4096 | | | |
| Fix and update process for manager | VIOS fixes and updates | HMC efixes and release updates | | | |
| Adapter-microcode updates | Inventory scout | Inventory scout | | | |
| Firmware updates | VIOS firmware-update tools | Service focal point with concurrent firmware updates | | | |
| I/O concurrent maintenance | VIOS support for slot- and device- level concurrent maintenance through the diagnostics hot-plug support | Guided support in the Repair and Verify function on the HMC | | | |
| Scripting and automation | VIOS CLI and HMC-compatible CLI | HMC command-line interface | | | |
| Capacity on Demand | None | Full support | | | |
| User interface | Web browser (no local graphical display) | WebSM (local or remote) | | | |
| Workload-management (WLM) groups supported | 1 | 254 | | | |
| LPAR configuration for data backup and restore | Yes | Yes | | | |
| Support for multiple profiles per partition | No | Yes | | | |
| Serviceable-event management | Service focal-point light - Consolidated management of firmware and management- partition-detected errors. | Service focal-point support for consolidated management of operating-system and firmware- detected errors | | | |
| Hypervisor and service- | Dump collection with support to do manual- | Dump-collection and call-home support | | | |
| Remote support | No remote-support connectivity | Full remote support for HMC and connectivity for firmware-based remote support | | | |

Table2. Comparison of IVM and HMC



Appendix B: Resources

These Web sites provide useful reference materials to supplement the information contained in this document.

- IBM System p Information Center http://publib.boulder.ibm.com/infocenter/pseries/index.jsp
- IBM Publications Center www.elink.ibmlink.ibm.com/public/applications/publications/cgibin/pbi.cgi?CTY=US
- IBM Redbooks® www.redbooks.ibm.com/
- Redpaper: Virtual I/O Server Integrated Virtualization Manager www.redbooks.ibm.com/redpieces/pdfs/redp4061.pdf
- White paper: IBM Integrated Virtualization Manager Lowering the cost of entry into POWER5 virtualization (requires filling out an information form) ibm.com/servers/systems/p/hardware/meetp5/contact.html
- IBM Systems Hardware Information Center: Partitioning with the Integrated Virtualization Manager publib.boulder.ibm.com/infocenter/eserver/v1r3s/topic/iphch/iphchkickoff.htm
- IBM Systems Hardware Information Center: Concepts for partitioning the server publib.boulder.ibm.com/infocenter/iseries/v1r2s/en_US/html_nav/info/iphat/iphatlparconcept skickoff.htm
- Linux on POWER ISV Resource Center ibm.com/servers/enable/linux/power
- Linux on POWER Architecture developer's corner ibm.com/developerworks/linux/power

About the authors

Clifford Spinac is a technical consultant and enablement architect for IBM ISV and Developer Relations in Austin, TX. He assists developers and IBM's business partners understand technologies such as Linux, Virtualization, Grid computing, and System p exploitation, as well as in teaming with IBM on these technologies. He has held various software development, design, architecture, planning, and consulting positions over his 28-year career with IBM. He also has 97 patent filings, 30 US patents issued, 14 published articles, and is an IBM Master Inventor. Cliff can be contacted at spinac@us.ibm.com.

Calvin Sze is a Linux consultant for the IBM Systems ISV Solutions Enablement organization at IBM. He is based in Austin, Texas. Calvin's main role is to help solution developers bring their applications to Linux on POWER. Calvin has been involved in software development and system integration on both Linux and AIX platforms for more than 10 years. You can contact Calvin at calvins@us.ibm.com.



Joseph Pu is an AIX technical consultant in the IBM Systems and Technology Group. His focus is in the area of AIX performance, tuning and sizing. Joe has extensive experience in software development, from graphics to software simulation. He started his AIX development experience more than 10 years ago. Joe graduated from the University of Texas at Austin, with a degree in Computer Science. He can be reached at joepu@us.ibm.com.

Trademarks and special notices

© Copyright IBM Corporation 2007. All rights Reserved.

References in this document to IBM products or services do not imply that IBM intends to make them available in every country.

Advanced POWER, AIX, eServer, i5/OS, IBM, the IBM logo, Micro-Partitioning, POWER, POWER5, POWER5+, Redbooks, System i, System p and System p5 are trademarks of International Business Machines Corporation in the United States, other countries, or both.

Linux is a trademark of Linus Torvalds in the United States, other countries, or both.

Other company, product, or service names may be trademarks or service marks of others.

Information is provided "AS IS" without warranty of any kind.

All customer examples described are presented as illustrations of how those customers have used IBM products and the results they may have achieved. Actual environmental costs and performance characteristics may vary by customer.

Information concerning non-IBM products was obtained from a supplier of these products, published announcement material, or other publicly available sources and does not constitute an endorsement of such products by IBM. Sources for non-IBM list prices and performance numbers are taken from publicly available information, including vendor announcements and vendor worldwide homepages. IBM has not tested these products and cannot confirm the accuracy of performance, capability, or any other claims related to non-IBM products. Questions on the capability of non-IBM products should be addressed to the supplier of those products.

